Ch(jose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING
Please take notice that there will be a regular meeting of the Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s Audit Committee to be held in person on December 10, 2024 at 8:15am, at One Hudson
City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 in accordance with Public Officers Law Section 103-a. This
meeting is open to the public, who will have the opportunity to attend the meeting in person at the One
Hudson City Centre address or via Zoom and provide live comments. Comments can also be provided
via email before and during the meeting to mtucker@columbiaede.com. Meeting packets are posted and
available on CEDC’s website: https://columbiaedc.com

Join Zoom Meeting;:

https://us06web.zoom.us/i/812498979257pwd=F1Aje6tsOUPK oyH8bZIYE8d6SbalUb. |

Meeting ID: 812 4989 7925, Passcode: 616801, Dial by your [ocation: 1 646 558 8656

Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kbRUDJ8q5a

Dated: December 3, 2024
Michael Molinski
Secretary, Columbia Economic Development Corporation

CEDC Audit Committee
Agenda
Chairman:
James Calvin
Members:
Tarah Gay
Michael Molinski
Kenneth Leggett
Rachel Levine

1. Audit Committee Charter*
2. Audit Engagement Letter*
3. Audit & Finance Committee Minutes April 9, 2024
4,  Public Comment
Attachments:
Audit Engagement Letter Audit & Finance Committee Minutes April 9, 2024

Audit Committee Charter

* Requires action

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718 |
www.columbiaedc.com

1



AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER
Columbia Economic Development Corporation

This Audit Committee Charter was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Columbia
Economic Development Committee, a public benefit corporation established under the
laws of the State of New York, on this __ day of , 2024,

Purpose

Pursuant to Article IV, Section 1 of the Corporation’s bylaws, the purpose of the Audit
committee shall be to (1) assure that the Corporation’s board fulfills its responsibilities
for the Corporation’s internal and external audit process, the financial reporting process
and the system of risk assessment and internal controls over financial reporting; and (2)
provide an avenue of communication between management, the independent auditors,
the internal auditors, and the board of directors;

Powers of the Audit Committee
It shall be the responsibility of the Audit committee to:

« Oversee the work of any public accounting firm employed by the Corporation.

« Conduct or authorize investigations into any matters within its scope of
responsibility.

« Seek any information it requires from Corporation employees, all of whom should
be directed by the board to cooperate with committee requests.

« Meet with Corporation staff, independent auditors or outside counsel, as
necessary.

« Retain, at the Corporation’s expense, such outside counsel, experts and other
advisors as the audit committee may deem appropriate.

« Report annually to the corporation’s board how it discharged its duties and met
its responsibilities as outlined in the charter.

« Conduct and annual self-evaluation of its performance, including its effectiveness
and compliance with the charter and request board approval of any proposed
changes to said charter.

« Annually review by the CEDC and SBA loan funds, including loan policies,
lending limits and reserves.

The CEDC Board of Directors will ensure that the Audit committee has sufficient
resources to carry out its duties.



Composition of Committee and Selection of Members

The membership of the committee shall be as set forth in accordance with and pursuant
to Article 1V, Section 1 of the Corporation’s bylaws. The Audit committee shall consist of
at least five (5) Independent Directors of the Corporation. The Audit Committee shall
consist of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors, Vice-Chairperson of the Board of
Directors, Secretary of the Board of Directors, Chairperson of the Loan Committee and
Chairperson of the Governance and Nominating Committee. The Chairperson of the
Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the Board of Directors and
ratified by the Board of Directors.

Audit committee members shall be prohibited from being an employee of the
Corporation or an immediate family member of an employee of the Corporation. In
addition, Audit committee members shall not engage in any private business
transactions with the Corporation or receive compensation from any private entity that
has material business relationships with the Corporation, or be an immediate family
member of an individual that engages in private business transactions with the
Corporation or receives compensation from an entity that has material business
relationships with the Corporation.

Ideally, all members on the Audit committee shall possess or obtain a basic
understanding of governmental financial reporting and auditing.

The audit committee shall have access to the services of at least one financial expert,
whose name shall be disclosed in the annual report of the Corporation.

The Audit committee’s financial expert should have 1) an understanding of generally
accepted accounting principles and financial statements; 2) experience in preparing or
auditing financial statements of comparable entities; 3) experience in applying such
principles in connection with the accounting for estimates, accruals and reserves; 4)
experience with internal accounting controls and, 5) an understanding of audit
committee functions.

Meetings

The Audit committee will meet a minimum of twice a year, with the expectation that
additional meetings may be required to adequately fulfill all the obligations and duties
outlined in the charter.

Members of the Audit committee are expected to attend each committee meeting, in
accordance with the provisions of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law. The Audit
committee may invite other individuals, such as members of management, auditors or
other technical experts to attend meetings and provide pertinent information, as
necessary.



The Audit committee will meet with the Corporation’s independent auditor at least
annually to discuss the financial statements of the Corporation.

The Chairperson shall preside over Committee meetings, which shall be open to the
public in accordance with the salient provisions of the Open Meeting Law of the State of
New York, as set forth within Article 7 of the Public Officers Law. Meeting agendas
shall be prepared prior to every meeting and provided to the Committee members along
with any other relevant materials at least five (5) business days before the scheduled
Audit Committee meeting.

Minutes of these meetings shall be recorded and a report of the Committee’s meeting
shall be prepared and presented to the Board of Directors at its next scheduled meeting
following the meeting of the Committee.

Responsibilities

The Audit committee shall have responsibilities related to: (a) the independent auditor
and annual financial statements; (b) the Corporation's internal auditors; (c) oversight of
management's internal controls, compliance and risk assessment practices; (d) special
investigations and whistleblower policies; and (e) miscellaneous issues related to the
financial practices of the Corporation.

A. Independent Auditors and Financial Statements
The Audit committee shall:

« Recommend and oversee independent auditors retained by the Corporation and
pre-approve all audit services provided by the independent auditor.

» Establish procedures for the engagement of the independent auditor to provide
permitted audit services. The Corporation’s independent auditor shall be
prohibited from providing non-audit services unless having received previous
written approval from the audit committee. Non-audit services include tasks that
directly support the Corporation’s operations, such as bookkeeping or other
services related to the accounting records or financial statements of the
Corporation, financial information systems design and implementation, appraisal
or valuation services, actuarial services, investment banking services, and other
tasks that may involve performing management functions or making
management decisions.

« Review and approve the Corporation’s audited financial statements, associated
management letter, report on internal controls and all other auditor
communications.

« Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or unusual
transactions and management decisions, and recent professional and regulatory
pronouncements, and understand their impact on the financial statements.



Meet with the independent audit firm on a regular basis to discuss any significant
issues that may have surfaced during the course of the audit.

Review and discuss any significant risks reported in the independent audit
findings and recommendations and assess the responsiveness and timeliness of
management’s follow-up activities pertaining to the same.

B. Internal Auditors

The Audit committee shall:

Review with management and the internal audit director, the charter, activities,
staffing and organizational structure of the internal audit function. The audit
committee shall have Corporation over the appointment, dismissal,
compensation and performance reviews of the internal audit director.

Ensure that the internal audit function is organizationally independent from
Corporation operations.

Review the reports of internal auditors, and have Corporation to review and
approve the annual internal audit plan.

Review the results of internal audits and approve procedures for implementing
accepted recommendations of the internal auditor.

C. Internal Controls, Compliance and Risk Assessment

The Audit committee shall:

Review management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal controls and review the report on internal controls by the independent
auditor as a part of the financial audit engagement.

D. Special Investigations

The Audit committee shall:

Ensure that the Corporation has an appropriate confidential mechanism for
individuals to report suspected fraudulent activities, allegations of corruption,
fraud, criminal activity, conflicts of interest or abuse by the directors, officers, or
employees of the Corporation or any persons having business dealings with the
Corporation or breaches of internal control.

Develop procedures for the receipt, retention, investigation and/or referral of
complaints concerning accounting, internal controls and auditing to the
appropriate body.

Request and oversee special investigations as needed and/or refer specific
issues to the appropriate body for further investigation (for example, issues may
be referred to the State Inspector General or, other investigatory organization.)
Review all reports delivered to it by the Inspector General and serve as a point of
contact with the Inspector General.



E. Other Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The Audit committee shall:

« Present annually to the Corporation’s board a written report of how it has
discharged its duties and met its responsibilities as outlined in the charter.

« Obtain any information and training needed to enhance the committee members’
understanding of the role of internal audits and the independent auditor, the risk
management process, internal controls and a certain level of familiarity in
financial reporting standards and processes.

« Review the committee’s charter annually, reassess its adequacy, and
recommend any proposed changes to the board of the Corporation. The audit
committee charter will be updated as applicable laws, regulations, accounting
and auditing standards change.

« Conduct an annual self-evaluation of its performance, including its effectiveness
and compliance with the charter and request the board approval for proposed
changes.



= UHY LLP
,/ One Hudson City Centre

Suite 204

Hudson, NY 12534
{518) 828-1565
uhy-us.com

December 3, 2024

Mr. F. Michael Tucker

President and CEO

and

Mr. James Calvin

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Columbia Economic Development Corporation
1 Hudson City Centre, Suite 301
Hudson, New York 12534

Dear Mr. Tucker and Mr. Calvin:

You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Columbia Economic Development
Corporation (a component unit of Columbia County, New York), which are comprised of the statement
of net position as of December 31, 2024, and the related statements of revenue, expenses and
changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ending, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Columbia Economic Development Corporation's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In addition, we will audit the entity’s compliance over major federal award programs for the period
ending December 31, 2024. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of this
audit engagement by means of this letter. Our audits will be conducted with the objectives of our
expressing an opinion on the financial statements and an opinion on compliance regarding the entity’s
major federal award programs. The objectives of our audit of the financial statements are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS) and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

The objectives of our compliance audit are to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to form an
opinion and report at the level specified in the governmental audit requirement about whether the entity
complied in all material respects with the applicable compliance requirements and identify audit and
reporting requirements specified in the governmental audit requirement that are supplementary to
GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, if any, and perform procedures to address those
requirements.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP), as promulgated
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that management’s discussion and
analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a



part of the basic financial statements, is required by GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management
regarding their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide
any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but
will not be audited:

¢ Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We will subject the schedule of expenditures of federal awards to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling the schedule to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We intend to provide an opinion
on whether the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented fairly in all material respects
in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Data Collection Form

Prior to the completion of our engagement, we will complete the sections of the Data Collection Form
that are our responsibility. The form will summarize our audit findings, amounts and conclusions. It is
management’s responsibility to submit a reporting package including financial statements, schedule
of expenditure of federal awards, summary schedule of prior audit findings and corrective action plan
along with the Data Collection Form to the federal audit clearinghouse. The financial reporting package
must be text searchable, unencrypted, and unlocked. Otherwise, the reporting package will not be
accepted by the federal audit clearinghouse. We will assist you in the electronic submission and
certification. You may request from us copies of our report for you to include with the reporting package
submitted to pass-through entities.

The Data Collection Form is required to be submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of our
auditors’ reports or nine months after the end of the audit period, unless specifically waived by a federal
cognizant or oversight agency for audits. Data Collection Forms submitted untimely are one of the
factors in assessing programs at a higher risk.

Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audits in accordance GAAS, the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America;
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). As part of an audit of financial statements in accordance with GAAS and Governmental
Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

2



audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. However, we will communicate
to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal
control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

¢ Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Columbia Economic
Development Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control,
an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or honcompliance may not be detected exists,
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards of the Comptroller General of the United States of America. Please note that the
determination of abuse is subjective and Government Auditing Standards does not require auditors to
detect abuse.

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any
other periods.

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Columbia Economic Development
Corporation’s basic financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation. Circumstances may arise in which our report may
differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature
of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter
or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If
our opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons
with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or
have not formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this
engagement.

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written
report describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over
compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that
testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance over financial reporting will
not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed.

We have identified the following significant risk of material misstatement as part of our audit planning:

» Management override of controls

We have not completed our planning as of the date of this letter. If we identify additional significant
risks during the audit process we will communicate such additional risks to.you at that time.



Audit of Major Program Compliance

Our audit of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s major federal award program(s)
compliance will be conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, as
amended; and the Uniform Guidance, and will include tests of accounting records, a determination of
major programs in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and other procedures we consider
necessary to enable us to express such an opinion on major federal award program compliance and
to render the required reports. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion on compliance
will be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or
withdraw from the engagement.

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether material noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations, the provisions
of contracts and grant agreements applicable to major federal award programs, and the applicable
compliance requirements occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and ‘express an opinion on the
entity’s compliance based on the audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasconable user of the report on compliance
about the entity’s compliance with the requirements of the federal programs as a whole.

As part of a compliance audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also
identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.

Our procedures will consist of determining major federal programs and, performing the applicable
procedures described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget OMB Compliance Supplement
for the types of compliance requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
entity’s major programs, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. The purpose of those procedures will be fo express an opinion on the entity’s
compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance
issued pursuant to the Uniform Guidance.

Also, as required by the Uniform Guidance, we will obtain an understanding of the entity's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design and perform tests of controls to evaluate
the effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or
detecting material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each of the entity’s
major federal award programs. Our tests will be less in scope than would.be necessary to render an
opinion on these controls and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report. However, we
will communicate to you, regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we
have identified during the audit.

We will issue a report on compliance that will include an opinion or disclaimer of opinion regarding the
entity’s major federal award programs, and a report on internal controls over compliance that will report

10



any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses identified; however, such report will not express
an opinion on internal control.

Management’s Responsibilities

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

1.

2,

10.
1.

12.

13.
14.

15.

For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws,
government regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements;

For identifying, in its accounts, all federal awards received and expended during the period
and the federal programs under which they were received;

For maintaining records that adequately identify the source and application of funds for
federally funded activities;

For preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash
assistance received) in accordance with the Uniform Guidance;

For designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal control over federal awards
that provides reasonable assurance that the entity is managing federal awards in compliance
with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the federal awards;

For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with federal laws, statutes, regulations,
rules, provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and the terms and conditions of federal
award programs, and implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with applicable
federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal award programs;

For disclosing accurately, currently, and completely the financial results of each federal award
in accordance with the requirements of the award;

For identifying and providing report copies of previous audits, attestation engagements, or
other studies that directly relate to the objectives of the audit, including whether related
recommendations have been implemented,

For taking prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified;

For addressing the findings and recommendations of auditors, for establishing and maintaining
a process to track the status of such findings and recommendations and taking corrective
action on reported audit findings from prior periods and preparing a summary schedute of prior
audit findings;

For following up and taking corrective action on current year audit findings and preparing a
corrective action plan for such findings;

For submitting the reporting package and data collection form to the appropriate parties;

For making the auditor aware of any significant contractor relationships where the contractor
is responsible for program compliance;

To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the disclosures,
and relevant to federal award programs, such as records, documentation, and other
matters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the
audit;

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary
to obtain audit evidence;

1"



d. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue
that will be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of
issuance of that annual report; and

e. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together,
comprise the annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor's report.

16. For adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us
in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s)
under audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements
as a whole;

17. For acceptance of non-attest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee non-
attest work;

18. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and
safeguarding assets;

19. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management,
employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material
effect on compliance;

20. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided;

21. For taking reasonable measures o safeguard protected personally identifiable and other
sensitive information; and

22. For confirming your understanding of your responsibilities as defined in this letter to us in your
management representation letter.

With regard to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards referred to above, you acknowledge
and understand your responsibility (a) for the preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, (b) to provide us with the appropriate written
representations regarding the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, (c) to include our report on
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards in any document that contains the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and that indicates that we have reported on such schedule, and (d) to
present the schedule of expenditures of federal awards with the audited financial statements, or if the
schedule will not be presented with the audited financial statements, to make the audited financial
statements readily available to the intended users of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
no later than the date of issuance by you of the schedule and our report thereon.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged
with governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the
audit.

We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any
documents or invoices selected by us for testing.

If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the financial statements and make reference to our
firm, you agree to provide us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before
printing. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final reproduced material for our approval
before it is distributed.

Non-attest Services
With respect to any non-attest services we perform, including preparation of the financial statements,

preparation of the Corporation’s tax return, and preparation of the Corporation’s annual form 1099s,
we will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of Columbia Economic Development

12



Corporation. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of
Columbia Economic Development Corporation in performing its responsibilities.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the financial statement preparation services,
tax return preparation services, and any other non-attest services we provide; oversee the services by
designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skills, knowledge, and/or
experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them. It
is your responsibility to maintain original data and records as well as the information produced by
information systems. We cannot accept and have no responsibility to maintain any of your data,
records, or information. F. Michael Tucker will be the member of management responsible for
overseeing our non-attest services.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the non-attest services are as follows:

e We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards, including
the Statements on Standards for Tax Services issued by the AICPA.

¢ The non-attest services are limited to the preparation of the financial statements, preparation
of the tax returns and preparation of the Corporation’s form 1099s, as previously outlined. Our
firm, in its sole professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take
any action that could be construed as making management decisions or assuming
management responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving journal
entries. Our firm will advise Columbia Economic Development Corporation with regard to tax
positions taken in the preparation of the tax return, but Columbia Economic Development
Corporation must make all decisions with regard to those matters.

Other

The timing of our audit will be scheduled for performance and completion as follows:

Begin Complete

Document internal control and preliminary tests December 2024 February 28, 2025
Mail confirmations n/a January 2025
Perform year-end audit procedures January 20, 2025 March 7, 2025
Audit committee meeting n/a TBD — March 2025
Board Meeting n/a TBD — March 2025
Issue audit reports n/a By March 31, 2025
Issue 990 n/a By May 15, 2025

Nicole Overbaugh is the engagement principal for the audit services specified in

this letter. Her

responsibilities include supervising UHY LLP’s services performed as part of this engagement and
signing or authorizing another qualified firm representative to sign the audit report. Matthew

VanDerbeck will serve as the relationship partner.

13



From time to time, both during and after the conclusion of our engagement, we may be required to
respond to subpoenas or other requests for documents, testimony or court appearances, or to
otherwise take actions under compulsion of law or legal process, relating to you and/or the work we
have undertaken for you as identified and described herein. In any such instance, you will be and
remain responsible to compensate us for our time expended, and to reimburse us for our costs and
disbursements (including attorney's fees) incurred, in complying with any such legal requirements, all
in the manner described in the following paragraph that addresses billing and payment.

Our fees are based on the amount of time required at various levels of responsibility, plus actual out-
of-pocket expenses. Invoices will be rendered as work progresses and are payable upon presentation.
We estimate that our fee for the audit will be $32,500 based on 200 hours. We will notify you
immediately of any circumstances we encounter that could significantly affect this initial fee estimate.
Whenever possible, we will attempt to use Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s personnel
to assist in the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts. This effort could substantially
reduce our time requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit.

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-
mail, and you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or
intercepted communications.

Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements
published electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to
distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these
sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original
document.

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial
and non-financial data. As such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and
we cannot be responsible to maintain such original information. By signing this engagement letter, you
affirm that you have all the data and records required to make your books and records complete.

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of UHY LLP and constitutes confidential
information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to
Columbia County, state and federal agencies and the U.S. Government Accountability Office pursuant
to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such audit
documentation will be provided under the supervision of UHY LLP’s personnel. Furthermore, upon
request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to these agencies and regulators.
The regulators and agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained
therein to others, including other governmental agencies. We agree to retain our audit documentation
or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date of our report.

Further, we will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and
accounting matters of a routine nature.

During the course of the audit, we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls
over, your operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of
management, either orally or in writing.

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the financial statements of which you may become

aware during the period from the date of the auditor's report to the date the financial statements are
issued.

14



At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the board of directors the following
significant findings from the audit:

Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices;

Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;

Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;

Disagreements with management, if any;

Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment,

significant and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the

financial reporting process;

e Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a
result of our audit procedures;

¢ Representations we requested from management;

e Management's consultations with other accountants, if any; and

e Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of

correspondence, with management.

“UHY” is the brand name under which UHY LLP and UHY Advisors, Inc. ("UHY Advisors") provide
professional services. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice
structure. UHY LLP is a licensed independent CPA firm that performs attest services. UHY Advisors,
Inc. provides tax and business consulting services through subsidiary entities. UHY LLP has a
contractual arrangement with UHY Advisors and its various subsidiaries pursuant to which UHY
Advisors provides UHY LLP with services for which licensure as a CPA is not required. In order to
avoid duplication of efforts arising out of this arrangement, we request that you consent to our sharing
with UHY Advisors and UHY Advisors sharing with UHY LLP the information that may be obtained
from you during the course of our engagement. Unless you indicate otherwise, your acceptance of the
terms of this engagement shall be understood by us as your consent to make disclosures to UHY
Advisors of confidential information that we may obtain in the course of our engagement.

UHY Advisors, Inc. and UHY LLP are U.S. members of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited
(UHY International), a UK company, and form part of the international UHY network of legally
independent accounting and consulting firms. Any services described herein are provided by UHY
Advisors, Inc. and/or UHY LLP (as the case may be) and not by UHY International or any other
member firm of UHY International. Neither UHY International nor any member of UHY International
has any liability for services provided by other members

This engagement letter and all services rendered hereunder shall be governed, construed, and
enforced by the laws of the State of New York, without the need to resort to principles of conflicts of
laws. New York law shall apply to any legal or equitable proceeding that shall be instituted in any way
arising out of this engagement letter, any obligations contained or allegedly contained herein, and all
services rendered touching or relating in any way to the obligations of this engagement letter. All
parties to this engagement consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal and state courts located
in New York and, more particularly, the state court located in Albany County, New York and the federal
court located in the Northern District of New York.

in accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of
our latest external peer review report of our firm for your consideration and files.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and

agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements compliance over major
federal award programs including our respective responsibilities.

15



For the purposes of this engagement letter (and other letters of correspondence), transmitted copies
(reproduced documents transmitted via photocopy, facsimile, or process that accurately transmits the
original) are considered documents equivalent to original documents. Signatures transmitted and
received via facsimile, pdf format, e-mail, or an electronic signature platform will be treated for all
purposes of this engagement letter (and other letters of correspondence) as original signatures and
will be deemed valid, binding, and enforceable by and against all parties.

We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with
you and your staff.

Respectfully,
U /!y Lep

Nicole Overbaugh, CPA

Principal
UHY LLP

KRRk RkRRkkkkkkkkdhkikkRhRRRERRRRRRRRRRER R dhkdkhhhkdkhkkikkdkkkkkk

RESPONSE:
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding.
Columbia Economic Development Corporation

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Columbia Economic Development Corporation by:

Name:

Title: Chairman of the Audit Committee

Date:

Name:

Title: President and CEO

Date:

10

16



UHY L.
Certified Public Accountants
2023 Peer Review Report

We are pleased to provide a copy of UHY LLP’s most recent peer review report dated
November 29, 2023 as well as the related letter from the Chair of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants’ National Peer Review Committee notifying us that the Committee
accepted our peer review report on February 15, 2024. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass
with deficiency(ies), or fail. UHY LLP received a peer review report rating of pass — the best
possible outcome.

Peer reviews are conducted on a triennial basis and are performed on the system of quality
control for the accounting and auditing practice applicable to non-SEC issuers. Our next peer
review will be due on January 31, 2027.

A peer review is conducted by qualified CPAs from an outside CPA firm. These peer reviewers
select engagements that are representative of the reviewed firm’s non-SEC practice. Their
selections consider the various industries served by the firm, the partners serving those
industries and must include all levels of attest service — audits, reviews, compilations, agreed-
upon procedures engagements, SOC 1 and SOC 2 engagements, and other attestation

services.

In addition to the numerous engagement files reviewed in detail, the peer reviewers inspect
other areas of our non-SEC practice including client acceptance and retention, independence,
CPE compliance, licensing and professional membership, and our staff and partner resources
related to recruiting, hiring, assignments, education and training, and continuing professional
education.

We are proud of our record of commitment to quality and pledge to continue in our dedication
to the highest level of service.

l[,‘_/y LLp

17



"‘\ National Peer
"“ A | C PA Review Committee

February 15, 2024

Cynthia Scheuer

UHY LLP

1185 Avenue Of The Americas FL 38
New York, NY 10036-2603

Dear Cynthia Scheuer:

It is my pleasure to notify you that on February 15, 2024, the National Peer Review Committee accepted
the report on the most recent System Review of your firm. The due date for your next review is January 31,
2027. This is the date by which all review documents should be completed and submitted to the
administering entity. Since your due date falls between January and April, you can arrange to have your

review a few months earlier to avoid having a review during tax season.

As you know, the report had a peer review rating of pass. The Committee asked me to convey its
congratulations to the firm.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sincerely,

e wa«u-\_.

Michael Wagner
Chair, National PRC

+1.919,402.4502
cc: Candace Wright, Betina Dufault

Firm Number: 900003882951 Review Number: 605271

220 Lelgh Farm Road, Durham, NC 27707-8110
T: 419194024502 F: +1.919.419.4713
aicpaglobal.com | amaglobal.com | aicpa.org | cimagirg



EisnerAmper LLP
8550 United Plaza Blvd.
Suite 1001

Baton Rouge, LA 70809
T 225.922.4600

F 2259224611
www.eisneramper.com

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control
November 29, 2023

To the Partners of UHY LLP
and the National Peer Review Committee

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of UHY LLP (the firm)
applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection, in effect for the year ended July 31, 2023. Our
peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews
established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a system review as
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes an explanation of
how engagements identified as not performed or reported on in conformity with applicable professional standards, if
any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating.

Firm’s Responsibility

The firm is responsible for designing and complying with a system of quality control to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with the requirements of applicable professional
standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate
engagements deemed as not performed ot reported on in conformity with the requirements of applicable professional
standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality control, if any.

Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of and compliance with the firm’s system of quality control
based on our review.

Required Selections and Considerations

Engagements selected for review included engagements performed under Government Auditing Standards, including
compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; audits of employee benefit plans; an audit performed under FDICIA;
and examinations of service organizations (SOC 1 and SOC 2 engagements).

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if applicable,
in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.

“EisnerAmper is the brand name under which EisnerAmper LLP and Eisner Advisory Group LLC and its subsidiary entities provide professional services.
EisnerAmper LLP and Eisner Advisory Group LLC are independently owned firms that practice in an alternative practice structure in accordance with the AICPA
Cade of Professional Conduct and applicable law, regulations and professional standards. EisnerAmper LLP is a licensed CPA firm that provides attest services,
and Eisner Advisory Group LLC and its subsicliary entities provide tax and business consulting services. Eisner Advisory Group LLC and its subsidliary entities are
not licensed CPA firms.

19



Opinion

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of UHY LLP applicable to
engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection, in effect for the year ended July 31, 2023, has been suitably
designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity
with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with
deficiency(ies) or fail. UHY LLP has received a peer review rating of pass.

KMM/%AL/Q

EISNERAMPER LLP
Baton Rouge, Louisiana

EisnerAmper LLP
www.eisneramper.com

20



UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc.
One Hudson City Centre
Suite 204

Hudson, NY 12534

(518) 828-1565

uhy-us.com

December 5, 2024

Mr. F. Michael Tucker
President and CEO

Columbia Economic Development Corporation
1 Hudson City Centre, Suite 301
Hudson, NY 12534

Dear Mr. Tucker:

This engagement letter, and the related Standard Terms and Conditions contained in Appendix B
attached, confirms and specifies the arrangements for UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”,
“we”, “us” or words of similar import) to provide tax compliance and consulting services for the entities
outlined in Appendix A (the “Organization” or the “Taxpayer") and to clarify the nature and extent of
the services we will provide. We ask you to review the following and Appendices A and B in order to

ensure an understanding of our mutual responsibilities.

Scope of Services

We will prepare the returns as outlined in Appendix A. We will not prepare any tax returns except
those identified, without your written request and our written consent to do so. Our services are not
intended to determine whether you have filing requirements in taxing jurisdictions other than the one(s)
you have informed us of. Our firm is available under the terms of a separate engagement letter to
provide a nexus study that will enable us to determine whether any other state tax filings are required.
We assume responsibility for matters related to a nexus study solely if we are retained to perform such
services and, if we are retained, solely pursuant to the terms of the engagement letter applicable of
such nexus study.

Assisting you with your compliance with the Corporate Transparency Act (“CTA"), including beneficial
ownership information (“BOI") reporting, is not within the scope of this engagement. You have sole
responsibility for your compliance with the CTA, including its BOI reporting requirements and the
collection of relevant ownership information. We shall have no liability resulting from your failure to
comply with CTA. Information regarding the BOI reporting requirements can be found at
https://www.fincen.gov/boi.

The services outlined above include the normal preparation of the returns along with any schedules
to support the returns. However, it does not include any return positions or calculations that rise to a
level of a project, such as a cost segregation study, accounting method changes, nexus study, pass-
through entity tax analysis, research and development studies, etc. Should we incur a return position
or calculation that is considered a project, UHY Advisors will only prepare the project with your consent
to do so and solely pursuant to the terms and conditions of any engagement letter.

21



Attn To Mr. F. Michael Tucker
Columbia Economic Development Corporation
December 5, 2024

We will prepare the referenced tax returns solely for filing with the Internal Revenue Service (*IRS")
and state and local tax authorities as identified. Our work is not intended to benefit or influence any
third party, either to obtain credit, enter into a transaction, or for any other purpose.

The returns will be prepared from information that you furnish to UHY Advisors. We will not audit or
otherwise verify the data you submit, although we may ask you to clarify such data, we have no
obligation to do so.

Furthermore, our work in connection with the preparation of your income tax returns does not include
any procedures designed to detect errors, fraud, theft, inconsistencies or discover defalcations or other
irregularities of any kind, should any exist.

in addition to the preparation of the subject tax returns, we also are prepared to advise the
Organization regarding specific tax issues and tax planning considerations. During the course of
preparing the tax returns, we may bring to your attention potential tax savings strategies for you to
consider as a possible means of reducing your taxes in subsequent tax years. However, we have no
responsibility to do so, and will take no action with respect to such recommendations as the
responsibility for implementation remains solely with you, the Taxpayer. However, unless you
specifically seek our advice in writing, we cannot assume responsibility for advising the Organization
with respect to the tax consequences of the transactions entered into by the Organization or the impact
on the Organization of future developments in the tax law. If we expressly assume such responsibility,
such assumption of responsibility shall be solely pursuant to the terms of an engagement letter.

You agree to provide any information requested or that is reasonably needed to prepare your return
in a timely fashion. Failure to provide the information within the requested time frame may result in
the inability to complete your returns by the statutory filing dates and/or our inability to provide an
accurate return.

It may become necessary to apply for an extension of the filing deadline if there are unresolved issues
or delays in processing, or if, in our sole discretion we do not receive all of the reasonably necessary
information from you in a manner that allows us to complete services in a timely fashion. Applying for
an extension of time to file may extend the time available for a government agency to undertake an
audit of your return or may extend the statute of limitations to file a legal action. All taxes owed are
due by the original filing due date. Additionally, extensions may affect your liability for penalties and
interest or compliance with governmental or other deadlines. Failure to timely request an extension
of time to file can result in penalties, that can be substantial, for failure to file tax returns, which accrue
from the original due date of the returns and/or other adverse conseguences.

Additional charges will apply for the computation and filing of such extensions.

This engagement is limited to the professional services outlined above.

22



Attn To Mr. F. Michae! Tucker
Columbia Economic Development Corporation
December 5, 2024

Our engagement hereunder concludes upon the earlier of 1) the electronic filing and acceptance of
the tax returns prepared for the year as indicated in Appendix A by the appropriate tax authorities 2)
the mailing or delivery of non-electronically filed tax returns prepared for the year as indicated in
Appendix A for your review and your filing with the appropriate tax authorities, or 3) written notification
by either party that the agreement is terminated. In the event that we perform additional services
which are not subject to the terms of a separate engagement letter, such services will be considered
a separate engagement subject to the terms of this engagement letter.

Our fee for the preparation of the listed tax returns is expected to be $3,600.

Standard Terms and Conditions

Standard Terms and Conditions applicable to our engagement on your behalf (including, without
limitation, arrangements regarding our fees for services) are set forth and described in the attached
Appendix B. Please review such Standard Terms and Conditions carefully, and feel free to contact us
with any questions that you may have relating to the same. Please consult legal counsel if you believe
you need such assistance. Your acceptance of this engagement letter as described below will be
deemed to include your agreement to all such Standard Terms and Conditions as elements of our
engagement on your behalf.

Section 7216 Consents

UHY Advisors adheres to the standards governing the confidentiality of taxpayer information as
prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service, AICPA, state boards of public accountancy and other
governing agencies. Internal Revenue Code (‘IRC") Section 7216 and the related Treasury
Regulations require that UHY Advisors obtain your affirmative consent to disclose or use your
information obtained by us in the process of preparing your tax returns. IRC Section 7216 is intended
to protect taxpayers’ privacy and limit the use of their information for purposes other than tax return
preparation.

By signing this engagement letter, the Organization agrees, for the period covered by this consent, to
the disclosure and/or use by UHY Advisors of any portion or all of its tax returns and tax return
information which has been previously provided or will be provided to UHY Advisors, for the following
purposes:

e Any disclosure or use in connection with the utilization of the services or expertise of one of UHY
Advisors’ domestic affiliated companies, UHY LLP, any independent member firm of UHY
International, or any third-party tax preparation providers or contractors, which may be located
outside the United States, in order to accurately and efficiently complete the tax return(s);

+ Any disclosure or use in connection with the rendering of business, legal, accounting or other
professional advice/services (including but not limited to bookkeeping assistance, the preparation
or certification of financial statements, valuation services, financing and legal services) to the
Taxpayer by UHY Advisors, any of UHY Advisors’ domestic affiliated companies, UHY LLP, any
independent member firm of UHY International, or any other professional advisor to the Taxpayer,
and

e Any disclosure by UHY Advisors to any affiliated entity, UHY LLP, or third party accounting
services provider (including but not limited to tax return preparation and documentation software
providers, document imaging and storage providers, and financial data and reporting software
providers) in connection with the common use by UHY Advisors, its affiliated entities, and UHY
LLP, of the same software programs (e.g., document management, tax return documentation and
processing, and practice management programs) whereby tax return information contained in
these software programs may be disclosed to other UHY Advisors affiliates, UHY LLP and the
third party service providers.

23



Attn To Mr. F. Michael Tucker
Columbia Economic Development Corporation
December 5, 2024

The above-referenced consent shall be valid hereafter, unless the Organization provides written notice
to UHY Advisors of its intent to terminate the consent. The Organization may terminate the above-
referenced consent at any time by providing written notice to UHY Advisors.

Other Information

“UHY” is the brand name under which UHY LLP and UHY Advisors, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”) provide
professional services. The two firms operate as separate legal entities in an alternative practice
structure. UHY LLP is a licensed independent CPA firm that performs attest services. UHY Advisors,
Inc. provides tax and business consulting services through subsidiary entities. UHY LLP has a
contractual arrangement with UHY Advisors and its various subsidiaries pursuant to which UHY
Advisors provides UHY LLP with services for which licensure as a CPA is not required. In order to
avoid duplication of efforts arising out of this arrangement, we request that you consent to our sharing
with UHY Advisors and UHY Advisors sharing with UHY LLP the information that may be obtained
from you during the course of our engagement. Unless you indicate otherwise, your acceptance of the
terms of this engagement shall be understood by us as your consent to make disclosures to UHY
Advisors of confidential information that we may obtain in the course of our engagement.

UHY Advisors, Inc. and UHY LLP are U.S. members of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited
(UHY International), a UK company, and form part of the international UHY network of legally
independent accounting and consulting firms. Any services described herein are provided by UHY
Advisors, Inc. and/or UHY LLP (as the case may be) and not by UHY International or any other
member firm of UHY International. Neither UHY International nor any member of UHY International
has any liability for services provided by other members.

From time to time, both during and after the conclusion of our engagement, we may be required to
respond to subpoenas or other requests for documents, testimony or court appearances, or to
otherwise take actions under compulsion of law or legal process, relating to you and/or the work we
have undertaken for you as identified and described herein. In any such instance, you will be and
remain responsible to compensate us for our time expended, and to reimburse us for our costs and
disbursements (including attorney’s fees) incurred, in complying with any such legal requirements, all
in the manner described in the following paragraph that addresses billing and payment.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for the tax services, financial statement
services, and any other non-attest services we provide; oversee the services by designating an
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skills, knowledge, and/or experience;
evaluate adequacy of the results; and accept responsibility for them. It is your responsibility to maintain
original data and records as well as the information produced by information systems. We cannot
accept and have no responsibility to maintain any of your data, records, or information. ‘

This engagement letter and all services rendered hereunder shall be governed, construed, and
enforced by the laws of the State of New York, without the need to resort to principles of conflicts of
laws. New York law shall apply to any legal or equitable proceeding that shall be instituted in any way
arising out of this engagement letter, any obligations contained or allegedly contained herein, and all
services rendered touching or relating in any way to the obligations of this engagement letter. All
parties to this engagement consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of federal and state courts located in
New York and, more particularly, the state court located in Albany, New York and the federal court
located in the Northern District of New York.

Acceptance of Engagement Letter

If the above, and the attached Standard Terms and Conditions, sets forth your understanding, please
sign and return the enclosed copy of this engagement letter to us. We will not initiate services until we
receive the executed Engagement Letter. |If the foregoing is not in accordance with your
understanding, please contact us immediately.

24



Attn To Mr. F. Michael Tucker
Columbia Economic Development Corporation
December 5, 2024

We are pleased to have you as a client and look forward to a long and mutually beneficial association.

Very truly yours,

UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc.

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED BY:

F. Michael Tucker, President and CEO ‘ Date

25



Appendix A
Returns to be Prepared

Entity Name:

Columbia Economic Development Corporation
Year End:

December 31, 2024

Returns:

Federal Form 990

26



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”}
Standard Terms and Conditions

Tax Return Responsibilities

Your returns are, of course, subject to review by taxing authorities. Any proposed adjustments by the examining agent are subject to certain rights of appeal.
In the event of an examination, we will be available upon request to represent you as a separate engagement. Billing for such services will be commensurate
with the nature of services performed.

It is your responsibility to provide all information required for the preparation of a complete and accurate return. Additionally, you are responsible for the
proper recording of transactions in your books of account, for the safeguarding of your assets and for the substantial accuracy of your financial records. We
will not hold your property in trust for you, or otherwise accept fiduciary duties in the performance of the engagement. You certify that you will maintain
substantiation to support all recorded expenses; and, that to the best of your knowledge, you have advised us of all of your gross income for the tax year.
You agree to hold our firm harmless with respect to any additional tax, penalties, interest and professional fees resulting from the disallowance of tax
deductions due to inadequate documentation. You have the final responsibility for the accuracy of your income tax returns; therefore, you should review
them carefully before you sign and file them or authorize the returns to be electronically filed by us on your behalf.

If you provide our firm with copies of brokerage, investment advisor, or cryptocurrency statements and/or read-only access to your accounts, we will use the
information solely for the purpose described in the Engagement Objective and Scope section of this Agreement. We will rely on the completeness and accuracy
of the information provided in the statements and will not undertake any action to verify this information. We will not monitor transactions, investment
activity, provide investment advice, or supervise the actions of the entity or individuals entering into transactions or investment activities on your behalf. We
recommend that you receive and carefully review all statements upon receipt, and direct any questions regarding account activity to your banker, broker or
investment advisor. We will not provide financial advice or recommendations pursuant to this Agreement.

While UHY Advisors can provide assistance and recommendations, you are responsible for management decisions and functions, and for designating an
individual or individuals with suitable skill, knowledge and experience to oversee any services that UHY Advisors provides. You are responsible for evaluating
the adequacy and results of the services performed and accepting responsibility for such services. You are ultimately responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. The services to be provided to you by UHY Advisors are those services expressly set
forth and identified herein. It is your responsibility to maintain original data and records as well as the information produced by information systems, We
cannot accept and have no responsibility to maintain any of your data, records, or information. You acknowledge and agree that no Managing Director or
other employee of the firm is authorized to perform any services on behalf of the firm, or to otherwise bind the firm in any manner, not expressly set forth
and identified herein. UHY, in its sole professional judgment, reserves the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed
as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving journal entries. UHY will
advise the Organization with regard to the estimated tax benefits, but the Organization must make all decisions with regard to this service.

The Internal Revenue Service and most State taxing authorities are mandating taxpayers to e-file their tax returns. Accordingly, your eligible return(s) will be e-
filed unless you notify us otherwise. You will be required to verify and sign a completed Form 8879, IRS e-file Signature Authorization, and any similar state and
local equivalent authorization form before your returns can be filed electronically.

Electronic Signatures and Counterparts

Each party hereto agrees that any electronic signature is intended to authenticate a written signature, shall be valid, and shall have the same force and effect
as a manual signature. For purposes hereof, “electronic signature” includes, but is not limited to, a scanned copy of a manual signature, an electronic copy of
a manual signature affixed to a document, a signature incorporated into a document utilizing touchscreen capabilities, or a digital signature. This agreement
may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered an original instrument, but all of which shall be considered one and the
same agreement,

Virtual Currency

The IRS considers virtual currency (e.g., Bitcoin) as property for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As such, any transactions in, or transactions that use, virtual
currency are subject to the same general tax principles that apply to other property transactions.

If you had virtual currency activity during the tax year, you may be subject to tax consequences associated with such transactions and may have additional
reporting obligations. You agree to provide us with complete and accurate information regarding any transactions in, or transactions that have used, in any
manner, virtual currency during the applicable tax year.

Transfer Pricing

You may have transactions with related parties that are subject to the transfer pricing rules of IRC §482, Allocation of Income and Deductions Among
Taxpayers, which require that such transactions are conducted in an arm’s length manner. Taxpayers who do not have the required documentation can be
subject to significant penalties if transfer pricing adjustments are sustained upon examination by the IRS. Should you have transactions that are subject to IRC
§482, you acknowledge and confirm that you can document your transfer pricing policies in accordance with TRC §482 and §6662, Imposition of Accuracy-
Related Penalty on Underpayments, and the regulations thereunder to reduce this risk. If you ask us in writing to conduct a transfer pricing study, we will
confirm this representation in a separate engagement letter.

Page 267



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

Fee Matters

Our fees for services will generally be based on time expended, plus out-of-pocket costs, including without limitation, the payment of an administrative and/or
a technology fee, They might also include other factors deemed relevant, including the difficulty of the engagement and the skill required to perform the
accounting, tax or business consulting services properly; time limitations imposed either by you or the circumstances; and the experience, reputation and
ability of the individual or individuals assigned to the engagement. In addition, this fee depends upon the timely delivery, availability, quality, and
completeness of the information you provide to us. You agree that you will deliver all records requested and/or required and respond to all inquiries made
by our staff to complete this engagement on a timely basis. Our fees are not contingent on any outcome achieved as a result of our services. We provide no
assurances that our services will reach any conclusion or result.

Your account is due and payable to UHY Advisors when you receive the invoice. Services we provide are performed at your instance and request and,
therefore, you agree to guarantee payment of all fees charged for such services, You have thirty (30) days from the invoice date to review the invoice and to
communicate to us in writing any disagreement with the charges, after which you waive the right to contest the invoice. In the event your account is
outstanding for more than 30 days, UHY Advisors reserves the right to suspend work on this engagement until either the account has been paid or other payment
arrangements have been made. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written
notification of termination, even if we have not issued a tax return or other final work product. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and
to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. In the event that work is discontinued, either temporarily or permanently,
as a result of delinquent payment, we shall not be liable for any damages you may incur as a result of the work stoppage, including without limitation, the
timely filing of a return or an extension of time to file a return.

You may terminate this agreement at any time. Upon written notice of termination, we will promptly stop all work. You will be responsible for all fees and
expenses incurred prior to our stopping work.

If payments are not received in a timely manner, our collection policy does not require follow-up reminders and phone calls regarding payment status, However,
you may be contacted about any past due accounts.

Conflicts of Interest

If we, in our sole discretion, believe a conflict has arisen affecting our ability to deliver services to you in accordance with either the ethical standards of our
firm or the ethical standards of our profession, we may be required to suspend or terminate our services without issuing our work product.

Termination and Withdrawal

We reserve the right to withdraw from the engagement without completing services for any reason, including, but not limited to, non-payment of fees, your failure
to comply with the terms of this Agreement, or as we determine professional standards require. If our work is suspended or terminated, you agree that we will
not be responsible for your failure to meet governmental and other deadlines, or for any liability, including but not limited to, penalties or interest that may be
assessed against you resulting from your failure to meet such deadlines.

If this Agreement is terminated before services are completed, you agree to compensate us for the services performed and expenses incurred through the effective
date of termination.

Section 7216 Consents

UHY Advisars adheres to the standards governing the confidentiality of taxpayer information as prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service, AICPA, state
boards of public accountancy and other governing agencies. Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 7216 and the related Treasury Regulations require that
UHY Advisors obtain your affirmative consent to disclose or use your information obtained by us in the process of preparing your tax returns. IRC Section

7216 is intended to protect taxpayers’ privacy and limit the use of their information for purposes other than tax return preparation.

Standards of Conduct for Preparing Tax Returns

Unless otherwise set forth herein, we will perform our services in accordance with the Statements on Standards for Tax Services (“SSTS”) issued by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) and U.S. Treasury Department Circular 230 (“Circular 230"). It is our duty to perform services
with the same standard of care that a reasonable income tax preparer would exercise in this type of engagement.

UHY Advisors is subject to certain standards of conduct for preparing tax returns and potential penalties for not meeting those standards of conduct. In
certain cases, we may be required to do additional work to determine if one or more of the tax positions in your return meets the reporting standards under
the law. If we determine, in our sole discretion, that we may be subject to a preparer penalty due to a tax position in your return should it be filed with the
Internal Revenue Service, you agree to either adequately disclose that position on your return or change the position to one that we confirm would not subject
us to penalty. If you do not choose to change your position or adequately disclose the tax position so as to eliminate, in our sole opinion, our exposure to the
preparer penalty, we, in our sole discretion and at any time, may withdraw from the engagement without completing or delivering tax returns to you. Such
withdrawal will complete our engagement, and you will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket
expenses through the date of our withdrawal. If you agree to adequately disclose the return position within the return, you also agree to hold our firm
harmless from any and all actual and consequential damages (including but not limited to tax, penalties, interest, and professional fees) you incur as a result
of including such disclosures with your filed tax return regardless of the nature of the claim, including the negligence of any party.

Page %Sof 7



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

We will use our judgment to resolve questions in your favor where a tax law is unclear, provided there is sufficient support for doing so. If there are conflicting
interpretations of the law, we will explain the possible positions that may be taken on your return. We will follow the position you request, provided it is
consistent with our understanding of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”), tax regulations, Revenue Rulings, Revenue Procedures, Private Letter Rulings and
court decisions. If the IRS, state or local tax authorities later contest the position taken, additional tax, penalties, and interest may be assessed. We assume
no liability, and you hereby release us from any liability for such additional tax, penalties, interest, and related professional fees.

If you wish to take a tax position based upon the advice of another tax advisor, you agree to obtain a written statement from the advisor confirming that the
position should meet the “realistic possibility,” “substantial authority,” or “more likely than not” standard, as applicable. In preparing your federal tax return,
we are subject to a diligence as to accuracy regarding reliance on others standard, as defined in revisions to Circular 230, §10.37(b}. To the maximum extent
allowed by law or regulations, UHY Advisors may rely upon a position which is based upon the advice of another tax advisor. Prior to preparing or signing the
tax return, AICPA SSTS No. 1 also requires our firm to have a good faith belief that the position has, at a minimum, a “realistic possibility” of being sustained
administratively or judicially on its merits, if challenged. Additional charges will apply to such research,

Independent Contractor

When providing services to your Organization, we will be functioning as an independent contractor and in no event will we or any of our employees be an
officer of you, nor will our relationship be that of joint venturers, partners, employer and employee, principal and agent, or any similar relationship giving rise
to a fiduciary duty to you.

Accountant — Client Privilege

Internal Revenue Code §7525, Confidentiality Privileges Related to Taxpayer Communication, provides a limited confidentiality privilege applying to tax advice
embodied in taxpayer communications with federally authorized tax practitioners in certain limited situations.

This privilege is limited in several important respects. For example, this privilege does not apply to your records, which you are required to retain in support
of your tax return. In addition, the privilege does not apply to state tax issues, state tax proceedings, private civil litigation proceedings, or criminal proceedings.

While we will cooperate with you with respect to the privilege, asserting the privilege is your responsibility. Inadvertent disclosure of otherwise privileged
information may result in a waiver of the privilege. We provide no assurances whether or not any privilege claim will be sustained by any taxing authority,

court or other third party, Please contact us immediately if you have any questions or need further information about this CPA-client privilege.

Reportable Transactions

The IRS and some states have promulgated rules that require taxpayers to disclose their participation in reportable transactions by attaching a disclosure
form to their federal and/or state income tax returns and, when necessary, by filing a copy of that disclosure form with the IRS and/or the applicable state
agency. These rules impose significant requirements to disclose certain transactions and such disclosures may encompass transactions entered into in the
normal course of business.

You are responsible for ensuring that you have properly disclosed all reportable transactions and failure to make the required disclosure will result in
substantial penalties. UHY Advisors will not be liable for any penalties resulting from your failure to accurately and timely file any required reportable

transaction disclosure.

The tax compliance services that are the subject of this engagement letter do not include any obligation of UHY Advisors to identify any reportable transactions
that have not been the subject of a prior consultation between you and UHY Advisors.

If you are aware of a transaction that may constitute a reportable transaction, you must inform us accordingly.

Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts and Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act

The filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114 (formerly Form TD F 90-22.1), Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (“FBAR”), is a U.S. Treasury
Department form that must be e-filed on or before October 15t following the end of the calendar year. Although the FBAR is not an income tax return, a
taxpayer’s obligation to file an FBAR is specifically addressed in the informational reporting sections of most U.S. federal income tax returns. A taxpayer’s
requirement to file an FBAR may arise because of being a U.S. person having an interest, directly or indirectly, in a foreign financial account or because of
signature or other authority over such an account. For these purposes, the instructions to the FBAR provide that a foreign financial account may include, but
is not limited to, bank accounts, brokerage, savings, checking accounts as well as pooled funds such as a mutual fund available to the general public. The
threshold for FBAR filing is an aggregate value exceeding $10,000 at any time during the calendar year, whether resulting from a financial interest or signature
authority over foreign financial accounts. The penalties for failure to file an FBAR can be significant.

The tax compliance services that are the subject of this engagement letter do not include the obligation of UHY Advisors to identify any FBAR reporting

obligations. The information provided in the previous paragraph is general and is not intended as a substitute for your review of the reporting obligations.
We will be pleased to assist you with performing such a review and making any required filings, if and as directed by you.

Page 29f7



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

U.S. citizens and certain aliens, corporations, partnerships and trusts holding any interest in specified foreign financial assets, exceeding certain thresholds,
must report those assets on IRS Form 8938, Statement of Foreign Financial Assets, as part of their income tax return. Specified foreign financial assets include
such items as accounts maintained by a foreign financial institution as well as stock, securities, financial instruments, and contracts held for investment and
issued by a non-U.S. person, The filing thresholds for reporting range from assets totaling in excess of $50,000 for the taxable year, but may be higher
depending on such factors as whether the taxpayer is married or is living outside the U.S. It is your responsibility to provide us with information relating to
any specified foreign financial assets. Failure to make the required disclosure to the IRS may result in substantial penalties. UHY Advisors will not be liable for
any penalties resulting from your failure to accurately and timely file any required reporting about specified foreign financial assets that were not disclosed
to us in writing.

The tax compliance services that are the subject of this engagement letter do not include any obligation of UHY Advisors to identify and report to any
governmental agency any foreign financial assets that have not been reported to us in the tax documents that you provided for the preparation of the return

that is the subject of this engagement letter.

Dispute Resolution and Choice of Law

This engagement letter and all services rendered hereunder shall be governed, construed, and enforced by the laws of the State of New York, without the
need to resort to principles of conflicts of laws. New York law shall apply to any legal or equitable proceeding that shall be instituted in any way arising out of
this engagement letter, any obligations contained or allegedly contained herein, and all services rendered touching or relating in any way to the obligations
of this engagement letter. All parties to this engagement consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the federal and state courts located in New York and, more
particularly, the state court located in Albany County, New York and the federal court located in the Northern District of New York.

Electronic Data Communication and Storage

In the interest of facilitating our services to you, we may send data over the Internet, store electronic data via computer software applications hosted remotely
on the Internet or utilize cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic data may be transmitted or stored using these methods. In using these data
communication and storage methods, our firm employs measures designed to maintain data security. We use reasonable efforts to keep such communications
and electronic data secure in accordance with our obligations under applicable laws, regulations, and professional standards.

You recognize and accept that we have no control over the unauthorized interception or breach of any communications or electronic data once it has been
transmitted or if it has been subject to unauthorized access while stored, notwithstanding all reasonable security measures employed by us. The firm is not
responsible for any transmission problems or the failure of you or any authorized recipient of the information to receive the file containing the information or
maintaining the confidentiality of any information transmitted via e-mail or in the possession of you or any authorized recipient. You are solely responsible for (i)
notifying the firm of the failure to receive your file containing the information so that a copy can be provided in an alternate form; (ii) the security of your e-mail
server and for restricting access to your e-mail in order to maintain confidentiality of the information transmitted; (iii) storing the electronic file containing the
information; and (iv) acquiring and maintaining the software needed to open and access the files containing the information.

To enhance our services to you, we will utilize various online products to receive and transmit documents. These online products provide, a collaborative, virtual
workspace in a protected environment. They permit real-time collaboration across geographic boundaries and time zones and allows UHY and you to share data,
engagement information, knowledge, and deliverables in a protected environment. In order to use these products, you may be required by the provider to execute
a client portal agreement and agree to be bound by the terms, conditions and limitations of such agreement. You agree that we have no responsibility for the
activities of the provider and agree to indemnify and hold us harmless with respect to any and all claims arising from or related to the operations of the provider.

UHY is not a host for any of your information. You are responsible for maintaining your own copy of this information. We do not provide back-up services for any
of your data or records, including information we provide to you. Portals are utilized solely as a method of transferring data and are not intended for the storage
of your information. Information on a portal may be deleted by UHY.

In addition, you agree that UHY has no liability for any malware, spyware, or viruses that may be included inadvertently in any electronic data provided by us to
you via electronic means, including thumb drives or uploaded files.

You consent to our use of these electronic devices and applications during this engagement.
Record Ownership

We will return all of your original records and documents provided to us at the conclusion of the engagement. Your records are the primary records for your
operations and comprise the backup and support for your work product. Our copies of your records and documents are not a substitute for your own records
and do not mitigate your record retention obligations under any applicable laws or regulations. If we provide deliverables or other records to you via an
information portal, you must download this information. Professional standards restrict us from being the sole repository of your original data, records, or
information.

Workpapers and other documents created by us are our property and will remain in our control and will be owned by us to the extent permitted by applicable
law or regulation. Copies are not to be distributed without your written request and our prior written consent which, unless otherwise required, may be
withheld in our sole discretion, Our workpapers will be maintained by us in accordance with our firm’s record retention policy and any applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

Page :gl%f 7



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

Our workpapers are prepared based upon tax reference materials, facts, assumptions, and representations subject to change. Tax reference materials include,
but are not limited to, the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”), regulations, Revenue Rulings, Revenue Procedures, Private Letter Rulings and court decisions. We
will not update our workpapers after the conclusion of the engagement for subsequent legislative or administrative changes or future judicial interpretations.

You agree to indemnify and hold us harmless with respect to any and all claims from your use of any UHY Advisors prepared electronic workpaper, such as a
spreadsheet, which you change or modify any assumption, inputs or formulas, subsequent to your receipt of the respective electronic workpaper, unless

otherwise provided within the scope of the engagement.

Working Paper Access Requests by Regulators and Others

State, federal and foreign regulators may request access to or copies of certain workpapers pursuant to applicable legal or regulatory requirements. Requests
also may arise with respect to peer review, an ethics investigation, the sale of your organization, or the sale of our accounting practice. If requested, access
to such workpapers will be provided to such regulators. Regulators may request copies of workpapers to distribute the copies or information contained
therein to others, including other governmental agencies.

If we receive a request for copies of selected workpapers, provided and we are not prohibited from doing so by applicable laws or regulations, we agree to
inform you of such request as soon as practicable. You may, initiate such legal action as you deem appropriate, at your sole expense, to attempt to limit the
disclosure of information. However, we reserve the right to take any action that we deem reasonable to comply with applicable laws or regulations. If you
take no timely action or if your action does not result in a judicial order protecting us from supplying requested information, we may construe your inaction
or failure as consent to comply with the request.

If we are not expressly set forth as a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought as a result of our actions when providing services, you agree
to reimburse us for our professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our legal counsel, incurred in responding to such requests.

Summoans or Subpoenas

All information you provide to us in connection with this engagement will be maintained by us on a strictly confidential basis.

If we receive a summons or subpoena which our legal counsel determines requires us to produce documents from this engagement or testify about this
engagement, provided that we are not prohibited from doing so by applicable faws or regulations, we agree to inform you of such summons or subpoena as
soon as practicable. You may initiate such legal action as you deem appropriate, at your sole expense, to attempt to limit discovery. However, we reserve the
right to take any action that we deem reasonable to comply with applicable law or regulation. If you take no timely action or if your action does not result in
a judicial order protecting us from supplying requested information, we may construe your inaction or failure as consent to comply with the request.

If we are not expressly set forth as a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought as a result of our actions when providing services, you agree
to reimburse us for our professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our legal counsel, incurred in responding to such requests.

File Retention and Privacy Policies

UHY Advisors has a file retention policy. We, as a firm, make no representation of retention of files after the date set forth in our retention policy, nor assume
any liability for the retention of any tax return information, data, or otherwise in which the client has such legal liability. Please be advised that there may be
important tax or financial information in the files that will be destroyed. Catastrophic events or physical deterioration may result in damage to or destruction
of our firm’s records, causing the records to be unavailable before the expiration of the retention period as stated in our record retention policy. This notice
represents any and all notice of our retention policy. By accepting the terms of this engagement, you acknowledge understanding of the UHY Advisors
retention policy. In addition, attached is a copy of UHY Advisors’ Privacy Notice to you pursuant to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (Public Law 106-102) and the
General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679).

Newsletters and Similar Communications

We may send newsletters, emails, explanations of technical developments or similar communications to you. These communications are of a general nature
and should not be construed as professional advice. We may not send all such communications to you. These communications do not, by themselves,
constitute a client relationship with you, nor do they constitute advice or an undertaking on our part to monitor issues for you.

Limitations on Oral and Emajl Communications

We may discuss with you our views regarding the treatment of certain items or decisions you may encounter. We may also provide you with information in
an email. Any advice or information delivered orally or in an email {rather than through a final memorandum delivered as an email attachment) will be based
upon limited research and a limited discussion and analysis of the underlying facts. Additional research or a more complete review of the facts may affect our
analysis and conclusions.

Page S4¢7



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

Due to these limitations and the related risks, it is not appropriate to proceed with a decision solely on the basis of any oral or email communication from us.
You accept all responsibility for any liability including but not limited to additional tax, penalties or interest resulting from your decision (i) not to have us
perform the research and analysis necessary to reach a more definitive conclusion and (ii) to instead rely on an oral or email communication, The limitation
in this paragraph will not apply to an item of written advice that is a deliverable of a separate engagement. Such written advice shall be subject to the terms
of the applicable engagement letter. If you wish to engage us to provide formal advice on a matter on which we have communicated orally or by email, we
will confirm this service in a separate engagement letter.

Proprietary Information

You acknowledge that proprietary information, documents, materials, management techniques and other intellectual property are a material source of the
services we perform and were developed prior to our association with you. Any new forms, software, documents or intellectual property we develop during
this engagement for your use shall belong to us, and you shall have the limited right to use them solely within your business. All reports, templates, manuals,
forms, checklists, questionnaires, letters, agreements and other documents which we make available to you are confidential and proprietary to us. Neither
you, nor any of your agents, will copy, electronically store, reproduce or make available to anyone other than your personnel, any such documents. This
provision will apply to all materials whether in digital, “hard copy” format or other medium.

Hiring UHY Advisors Employees

If you hire an employee of UHY Advisors (or UHY LLP), at any time during our relationship, or within one year of the end of our relationship, you will be billed
a normal placement fee of 30% of that employee’s first year salary with you or with your Organization. This placement fee will be paid to UHY Advisors (or
UHY LLP). Such placement fee shall be deemed a reasonable estimate of the cost to UHY Advisors (or UHY LLP) to replace such individual and shall not be
deemed to be a penalty for you taking such action.

Publicity
Our engagement as described herein does not include the granting to you of any rights to use our name or logo, or to refer to our work on your behalf, in any
publicly released statements or communications. Accordingly, you agree to not make any such use or references without first securing our prior written

consent thereto.

Internal Use and Third Parties

All services provided by us as part of this engagement shall be solely for your informational purposes and internal use, and no element of this engagement
shall create privity between UHY Advisors and any person or party other than you (“third party”). None of our services are intended for the express or implied
benefit of any third party, and no third party is entitled to rely on the services we provide you, including, without limitation, any advice, opinions, or reports.
In the event of any such reliance or claim thereof, you agree to indemnify and hold harmless UHY Advisors and its personnel from ail resulting damages,
obligations, liabilities, costs, and expenses.

Referrals

In the course of providing services to you, you may request, or we may provide referrals to products or professionals such as attorneys, brokers, or investment
advisors. We may identify professional(s) or product{s) for your consideration. However, you are responsible for evaluating, selecting, and retaining any
professional or product and determining if the professional or product meets your needs, You agree that we will not oversee the activities of and have no

responsibility for the work product of any professional or the suitability of any product we refer to you or that you separately retain,

Further, we are not responsible for any services we perform that fail to meet the intended outcomes as a result of relying on the services of other professionals
or products you may retain,

Third-Party Service Providers or Subcontractors

To enhance our availability to meet your professional service needs while maintaining service quality and timeliness, we may use a third-party service provider
to assist us. This may include provision of your confidential information to the third-party service provider. We require our third-party service providers to
have established procedures and controls designed to protect client confidentiality and maintain data security. As the paid provider of professional services,
our firm remains responsible for exercising reasonable care in providing such services, and our work product will be subjected to our firm's customary quality
control procedures.

By accepting the terms and conditions of our engagement, you are providing your consent and authorization to disclose your confidential information to a
third-party service provider, if such disclosure is necessary to deliver professional services or provide support services to our firm.

Force Majeure

Neither party shall be held liable for any delays resulting from circumstances or causes beyond our reasonable control, including, without limitation, fire or
other casualty, act of God, strike or labor dispute, war or other violence, epidemics or pandemics as defined by The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
or any law, order or requirement of any governmental agency or authority. However, no Force Majeure event shall excuse you of any obligation to pay any
outstanding invoice or fee or from any indemnification obligation under this Agreement.

Page 8277



Appendix B
UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. (“UHY Advisors”)
Standard Terms and Conditions

INDEMINIFICATION PROVISIONS

BY ACCEPTING THE TERMS OF THE ENGAGEMENT, YOU AGREE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW TO INDEMNIFY, HOLD HARMLESS AND RELEASE
US FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITIES AND (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEE), EXPENSES AND FEES, THAT ARISE PURSUANT
TO THIS ENGAGEMENT INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY LIABILITY RESULTING FROM MISREPRESENTATION OF ANY ITEM OF INCOME OR EXPENSE,
OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO US, TO PREPARE YOUR TAX RETURN.

LIMITATION ON LIABILITY

IN NO EVENT WILL OUR TOTAL LIABILITY TO YOU FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS
ENGAGEMENT LETTER (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO CONTRACT LIABILITY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER MATTER) EXCEED A SUM
EQUAL TO THE AGGREGATE AMOUNT OF FEES PAID TO US BY YOU UNDER THIS ENGAGEMENT LETTER. IN NO EVENT WILL WE BE LIABLE TO YOU OR ANY
OTHER PARTY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, LOST PROFIT OR OTHER DAMAGES OF ANY KIND THAT ARE NOT
STRICTLY OF A COMPENSATORY NATURE, EVEN IF WE HAVE BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

LIMITATION OF TIME FOR CLAIMS

ANY CLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS ENGAGEMENT LETTER SHALL BE COMMENCED WITHIN TWO (2) YEARS OF THE DELIVERY TO
YOU, ORTO ATHIRD-PARTY UPON YOUR INSTRUCTIONS, OF THE WORK PRODUCT TO WHICH THE CLAIM RELATES, REGARDLESS OF ANY LONGER PERIOD
OF TIME FOR COMMENCING SUCH CLAIMS AS MIGHT OTHERWISE BE PRESCRIBED BY APPLICABLE LAW. THIS PROVISIOON SHALL APPLY TO ALL CAUSES
OF ACTION RELATED IN ANY MANNER TO THIS AGREEMENT TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMIITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.,

Severability
You agree that if any part of the agreement is found to be non-binding, unenforceable or iliegal for any reason. Such provision(s) of this agreement shall be
modified or deleted to the minimum extent required by applicable law or regulation to make such provision enforceable, and the revised agreement shall

form the terms by made a part of this agreement. In such case all other parts of this agreement shall remain binding and in full force and effect.

Third Party Beneficiaries

This agreement shali not be deemed to create any third-party beneficiaries. No third party shall be deemed to have any rights or benefits of any kind with
respect to this agreement.

Disclaimer of Legal and Investment Advice

Our services under this Agreement do not constitute legal or investment advice. We recommend that you retain legal counsel and investment advisors to
provide such advice.

Assignment
You agree that you will not assign this agreement to any party without our prior written consent which may be withheld in our sole discretion. To the extent
this agreement is assigned all parties acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the parties’

successors and assigns, subject to applicable laws and regulations.

This agreement shall remain in effect and shall not require approval on the assignment by any of the parties entering into this agreement for a change by any
of the parties of their legal name.

UHY Advisors Relationships

UHY Advisors, Inc. and UHY LLP are U.S, members of Urbach Hacker Young International Limited, a UK company, and form part of the international UHY
network of legally independent accounting and consulting firms. “UHY” is the brand name for the UHY international network. Any services described herein
are provided by UHY Advisors Northeast, Inc. and not by URY or any other member firm of UHY. Neither UHY nor any member of UHY has any liability for
services provided by other members.

Page PoF7



Advisors

Tax & Business Consultants

UH

PROTECTING THE PRIVACY OF INFORMATION

Privacy Notice

November 2023

The UHY Advisors Companies include:
UHY Advisors, Inc.
UHY Consulting, Inc.
UHY Advisors M, Inc.
UHY Advisors MO, Inc.
UHY Advisors N.E., LLC
UHY Advisors NY, Inc.
UHY Advisors TX, LLC
UHY Advisors Texas Region, LLC
UHY Wealth Management, LLC
UHY Wealth Management RIA, LLC
UHY Capital Agency, Inc.
UHY Capital Group, LLC (f/k/a UHY Advisors Corporate Finance, LLC)
UHY Advisors CF, LLC
UHY Advisors Mid-Atlantic, Inc. {f/k/a UHY Advisors Mid-Atlantic MD, Inc.)
| UHY Advisors FLVS, Inc.
UHY Advisors SALT, LLC
UHY Management Company
UHY Employee Benefits Consulting Services, Inc.
Legal and Scientific Analysis Group, Inc.
UKW Advisors China Co., Ltd.
UHY Advisors TAP, Inc.
UHY Advisors indemnity Corp
UHY Advisors Alliance, LLC
UHY Advisors CA, Inc.
UHY Advisors National Tax Services, Inc.

At UHY Advisors, we are proud of the relationships we have developed with our clients. in
serving as your trusted advisor, we are committed to providing you with the highest quality
professional and business services while protecting your personal information. This privacy
notice contains information about the policies and practices we employ to fulfill this
commitment.

This policy applies to both current and former clients.

* * * *

UHY Advisors’ obligation and commitment to safeguard confidentiality

UHY Advisors has always recognized the importance of holding your personal information in
the strictest confidence. While UHY Advisors and its affiliated companies are not licensed to
practice public accountancy, many of our employees are members of the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and are bound by professional standards of confidentiality that
are even more stringent than those required by law. Similarly, employees who are Certified
Financial Planners are bound by the rigorous confidentiality standards of their profession,
With respect to those clients for whom we prepare tax returns, the Internal Revenue Code
prohibits us from disclosing tax return information without ctient consent, other than for the
specific purpose of providing services.

We hold our employees to strict standards of conduct to ensure the confidentiality of client
information. We also require companies with which we do business to use appropriate
measures to safeguard the confidentiality of such information.

UHY Advisors uses and shares information to better serve you.
We use and share information to provide high-quality services and to offer services that we
believe will be of value and interest to our clients. For example, your non-public personal
information enables us to:
. Provide you with comprehensive, high-quality services to meet your present and
future needs.
. Navigate you to other companies within the UHY Advisors’ family that offer other
high-quality business and professional services.

UHY Advisors collects non-public persona! information that may include:
o Information that we collect from you personally in the course of providing
services, such as your name, address, phone number, assets, income and
investment objectives.

. Information that we collect, with your consent, from your attorneys and other
advisors.
° Information about the services and products provided to you by the UHY Advisors’

family of companies, such as the nature of the engagement, investment decisions
made, assets placed under management and payment history.

. Information that we receive from others In order to establish your relationship
with us, such as credit reports and income verification.

UHY Advisors carefully limits information sharing.

If permitted by applicable laws and standards related to the professions in which our
employees engage, we may share the information described above within the UHY Advisors’
family of companies and with selected non-affiliated third parties for business purposes, This
sharing is carefully limited and we do not share your information for marketing purposes.

Information sharing within the UHY Advisors’ family.

Within UHY Advisors, we restrict employees’ access to non-public personal information based
on their need to know information in order to provide you services or offer you additional
services or products that may be of value to you.

Other information sharing.

We may also share non-public personal information about you with non-affiliated companies
or other organizations as required or permitted by law and our professional standards. For
example, we may share this information:

® With selected professional and financial services providers with whom we have
joint marketing agreements to offer you services and products offered by the UHY
Advisors’ family of companies or jointly with such other providers,

o With companies who help us to provide services to you {(for example, the
brokerage firm that executes securities transactions on your behalf or the
company that processes and /or inputs data for your tax return).

. With companies that support UHY Advisors’ accounting, billing and other systems.

For clients of UHY Capital Advisors, LLC:
. We do not share your information unless required to provide a direct service that
has been requested by you.
. Form ADV Part |l shall be made available upon written request,

In all of these circumstances, our agreements with the non-affiliated third parties require that
they keep your non-public personal information strictly private.

We may also share non-public personal information:
. As part of our peer review process.
° With federal and state regulators.

. In response to subpoenas and as otherwise required by law.

. To collect or report debts owed to us.

® In conjunction with a prospective purchase, sale or merger of a professional
practice.

If we retain records relating to the services that we provide, they are protected. In order to
guard your non-public personal information, we maintain physical, electronic and procedural
safeguards that comply with our professional standards.

For clients in the European Union:

UHY Advisors processes your personal data in order to provide you with services related to
the preparation and filing of your tax return(s). We also use your personal data to market
products and services that we believe may be of interest to you. The provision of your
personal data is required for us to be able to provide services to you, You do, however, have
the option of asking us not to use your personal data for marketing purposes.

We share your personal data with our representatives and affiliates to provide you with
comprehensive high-quality services and navigate you to other companies within the UHY
Advisors’ family that offer other high-quality business and professional services.

You have the right to access the personal data that we maintain on you, and to remove it from
our systems and take it with you. You also have the right to lodge a complaint against UHY
Advisors’ with your local supervisory authority.

For California Residents:

We provide a privacy statement at the time we collect information outlining the sources and
categories of data we collect. The statement describes your rights to access, deletion, and
certain other rights. It Is available at: www.uhy-us.com/privacy.

34



Chdose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

MINUTES
COLUMBIA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
AUDIT and FINANCE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, April 9, 2024

A regularly scheduled meeting of Columbia Economic Development Corporation’s (CEDC) Audit and
Finance Committee was held at the CEDC office, located at One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301,
Hudson, NY, on April 9, 2024. The meeting was called to order at 8:30am by Ms. Gay, Chair.

Attendee Name Title Status Departed

James Calvin Committee Member Absent

David Fingar Committee Member Present in person
Tarah Gay Chair Present in person
Bryan Mahoney Committee Member Absent

Rachel Puckett Committee Member Present in person
Rick Rector Committee Member Present in person
F. Michael Tucker President/CEO Present in person
Andy Howard Counsel Present in person
Chris Brown Housing Coordinator Present in person
Martha Lane Vice-President Business Development | Present in person
Stephen Vandenburgh | Business Development Specialist Present in person
Cathy Lyden Bookkeeper Present in person
Riley Werner Administrative Assistant Present in person
Lisa Drahushuk Administrative Supervisor Present in person

Minutes, March 19, 2024
Mr. Rector made a motion, seconded by Mr. Fingar to approve the March 19, 2024 minutes as
presented. Carried.

Treasurer’s Report

Mr. Tucker reviewed the financials with the Committee. He noted the SBA would be approving
approximately $260,000 in Technical Assistance to CEDC. He reminded the Committee that Dan
Rickman from the SBA would be the headline speaker at the Annual Meeting. He reviewed the
outstanding loans and the property being held for the County. Mr. Fingar made a motion, seconded
by Mr. Rector to approve the report as presented. Carried.

Portfolio Report:
Ms. Lane stated Loan Client A was in arrears and authorization had been given to re-write the loan.
She noted a closing had been scheduled. Loan Client B would be contacted for payment. Loan Client

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718
www.columbiaedc.com

35



Choose Columbia

Columbia Economic Development Corporation

C had sent one payment but remained behind and would be contacted. M. Rector made a motion,
seconded by Mr. Fingar to approve the report as presented. Carried.

Mr. Tucker noted work had begun on the CDBG Microenterprise Grant program. He stated the
program consisted of a 4 week training program with an associated grant (maximum amount $25,000),
which would require a 10% equity match by the grantee. Funds could only be used for equipment or
working capital and 50% of the awardees were required to be startups. Mr. Tucker stated the current
group of 20 contained 8 startups. He anticipated the program continuing over two years.

Mr. Tucker reviewed the audit informal report, noting it showed the inner workings of the audit
process. He stated RBT CPA’s had presented a proposal for providing bookkeeping services which he
was reviewing. He reminded the Committee they had assisted CEDC in closing the books for the year
in preparation for the 2023 audit. He stated he would like to contract with them for an hourly rate for
6 months to see what the demand would be, rather than a yearly contract. He informed the Committee
RBT CPA’s had recommended the CEDC Finance Committee authorize the payment of the bills,
quarterly. He suggested that be done at the Finance Committee meeting.

He stated CEDC’s IT provider stated the onsite server was scheduled to be replaced. He stated the
choice was to go to a cloud based server or keep the physical server. He noted the conversion to the
new server was the largest cost.

Mr. Tucker stated there were about 60 people signed up for the Annual Meeting.

With no public comment, Ms. Puckett made a motion, seconded by Mr. Rector to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 9:15am. Carried.

Respectfully submitted by Lisa Drahushuk

One Hudson City Centre, Suite 301, Hudson, NY 12534 | 518.828.4718
www.columbiaedc.com

36





